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40 N.W. 3rd Street, Suite 1103 

Miami, Florida 33128 
 

Phone (305) 373-6789 
Fax (305) 371-9451 

 
www.miamiparking.com 

 

 

January 24, 2014 

 

Honorable Mayor and Members of  
The City of Miami Commission: 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Department of Off-Street Parking of 
the City of Miami, Florida (the City) d/b/a Miami Parking Authority (the Authority) for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2013 is herewith submitted. The financial statements were prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 
as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

The management of the Authority is responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, based upon a 
comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose.  Sufficient 
accounting controls exist to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance regarding the 
safekeeping of assets and fair presentation of the financial statements, supporting schedules, and 
statistical tables. We believe that all the information necessary to enable a reader to gain an 
understanding of the Authority’s financial and operational activities is included.   

McGladrey LLP, a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants, has audited the Authority’s basic 
financial statements.  The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of the Authority for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 are free of 
material misstatement.  The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was 
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Authority’s basic financial statements 
for the fiscal year were presented fairly in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditor’s 
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it.  The Authority’s MD&A immediately follows the report of the independent 
auditors.   
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Profile of the Government 

The Authority was created in 1955 by a Special Act of the Florida State Legislature. The 
Authority’s enabling legislation was incorporated into the City’s Charter in 1968. As a semi-
autonomous agency of the City, the Authority receives no property tax support. During its 58-year 
history, the Authority has been supported solely by the revenue generated through its parking 
operations. 

The Authority is governed by the five-member Department of Off-Street Parking Board (the 
Board). The Board has the powers, duties, and responsibilities customarily vested in the board of 
directors of a private corporation and exercises supervisory control over the operations of the off-
street and on-street parking facilities of the City. The City Commission retains the final authority 
for the approval of the Authority’s annual budget and rate structure, with the exception of leased 
and managed facilities, the confirmation of appointments to the Board, and the issuance of parking 
revenue bonds. As a component unit of the City, the financial statements of the Authority are 
incorporated as a discretely presented proprietary fund into the City’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

As of September 30, 2013, the Authority managed approximately 36,000 spaces, including 15 
garages, 74 surface lots, and approximately 10,400 on-street spaces.  

The Authority operates facilities which it owns, as well as facilities owned by other governmental 
units, nonprofit entities, and public/private sector joint ventures. Non-Authority-owned facilities 
operated under management or lease agreements include: 

 City of Miami, Florida 
Knight Center Garage, Home Plate Garage, 3rd Base Garage, 1st Base Garage, Centerfield 
Garage, Municipal Lot Nos. 1, 19, 20, 57- 60, 67, 68, 70- 72, East 1 Lot, East 2 Lot, East 3 
Lot, West 1 Lot, West 2 Lot, and West 3 Lot (9,034 spaces) 

 Miami-Dade County, Florida 
Municipal Lot Nos. 18, 22, 23, 26, 34, 36, 38, 44, 45, 46 and 48 (1,181 spaces) 

 State of Florida 
Municipal Lot Nos. 11-16, 28, 29, 30, 32, 33, 49, 51-56, and 76-78 (2,194 spaces) 

 Martin Luther King Economic Development Corporation and R.J. Properties  
Municipal Lot No. 7 (60 spaces) 

 U.S. Post Office 
Municipal Lot. No. 85 (63 spaces) 

 Flagler Development Company, LLC 
Municipal Lot Nos. A, B, C and D (1,013 spaces) 

 Public Health Trust 
Park  Plaza  West Garage,  Park Plaza East Garage,  Highland  Park Garage,  Jackson Medical 
Towers Garage, North Garage, Municipal Lot Nos. 0, 4, 5, 10 and Highland Park Pavilion Lot 
(7,175 spaces) 

 Gesu Catholic Church 
Lot 41  (88 spaces) 

 Adrienne Arsht Performing Arts Center/State of Florida 
Lot C  (200 spaces) 
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Enforcement of Parking Regulations -  In addition to on-street and off-street parking operations, 
the Authority shares responsibility with the City Police Department for the ticketing and towing of 
illegally parked vehicles. The Authority also shares responsibility with Miami-Dade County for 
enforcement of parking regulations. Although the Authority participates in these enforcement and 
regulatory responsibilities, the Authority receives no parking fine revenue. All parking fine 
revenues generated within the City by the Authority is collected by the Miami-Dade County Clerk 
of the Circuit and County Courts, and is allocated to the City and Miami-Dade County.  During the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, Authority traffic management enforcement efforts generated 
approximately $2.3 million in parking fine revenue for the City and approximately $3.5 million for 
Miami-Dade County for a total of $5.8 million. 

Knight Center Garage- The Authority manages, under a separate management agreement, the 
operations of the Knight Center/Miami Tower Garage for the City. Under the terms of the 
agreement, the Authority receives a management fee based on a percentage of gross revenue for this 
garage, which is recorded as revenue from management and administrative fees on the Authority’s 
financial statements. Because all ownership rights and ultimate financial responsibility for these 
operations are held by the City, these operations are excluded from the Authority’s reporting entity. 

Marlins Park Parking Facilities – In December 2011, the Authority entered into a management 
agreement with the City to manage and operate the parking and retail facilities adjacent to the 
Marlins Park baseball stadium.  All revenues collected by the Authority are remitted to the City and 
expenses incurred by the Authority on behalf of the City are reimbursed pursuant to the 
management agreement. As with the Knight Center, because all ownership rights and ultimate 
financial responsibility for these operations are held by the City, these operations are excluded from 
the Authority’s reporting entity. 

Pension plan - The Authority sponsors a defined benefit plan in which all full-time Authority 
employees participate. The pension plan is presented on the face of the Authority’s financial 
statements as a fiduciary fund type.  Additionally, required disclosures regarding the pension plan 
are presented in the notes to the financial statements.  

Community Outreach - During the past several years, the Authority has experienced rapid change 
both in terms of operational responsibilities and its role in the community development process. The 
Authority’s traditional role of meeting the parking needs of the City has been expanded to include 
fostering an awareness of parking as an integral component of a balanced transportation system, 
both public and vehicular, and the community development process. 

The Authority’s expanded role in community involvement is demonstrated in various parking-
related projects geared toward neighborhood beautification and economic development, as well as 
continued participation on civic and governmental committees. 

The Authority’s continued role in community involvement is demonstrated as follows: 

 The Authority continues its participation in neighborhood parking advisory committees 
which provide a vehicle for citizen participation in the Authority’s decision-making 
process.   

 The Board and Authority continue participating in civic and governmental committees 
to share resources and provide input on decisions which impact on the area’s 
transportation needs and the City community development process. 

 The Authority has continued its public-information campaign in order to update 
citizens about the Authority’s role in parking management, any new programs being 
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offered as well as its support and financial contributions to the City.  It has been our 
mission to insure that we reach out to all the communities which we serve and to this 
end we used media outlets in English, Spanish and Creole. 

 In-kind sponsorships in the form of donated parking were provided to numerous 
organizations such as The Miami International Book Fair in Downtown Miami, as 
well as the Coconut Grove Arts Festival and Flagler Fest amongst others. 

 The Authority’s partnership with Car2Go has proven to be a resounding success.  It has 
been met with wide acceptance throughout the community. Our collaboration has 
helped to insure that City of Miami Residents have additional options when 
considering how they move about our City.  This innovative mode of transportation 
provides accessibility to all places throughout the city, with great convenience, at a 
very affordable cost.   

Economic Condition and Outlook 

The City encompasses 34.3 square miles of land and 19.5 square miles of water, and is the county 
seat of Miami-Dade County, which encompasses 2,000 square miles of Florida’s southeastern 
region. The City is situated at the mouth of the Miami River on the western shore of Biscayne Bay 
and is the main port of entry in Florida. Miami is the southernmost major city and seaport in the 
continental United States. The nearest foreign territory is the Bahamian Island of Bimini, 50 miles 
from the City coast. The City has a subtropical-marine climate, characterized by long summers with 
abundant rainfall and mild, dry winters. The average temperature in the summer is 83 degrees 
Fahrenheit and 69 degrees Fahrenheit in the winter, with an average annual temperature of 
76 degrees Fahrenheit. 

The economic base of Greater Miami has diversified in recent years, shifting from a reliance on the 
tourism industry to a combination of service industries and international trade. 

The City has a resident population in excess of 399,000.  The Authority is charged with meeting the 
public parking needs within the City limits. 

Most public sector parking programs use parking revenue to fund their operating budgets. Within 
the United States, more than 71% of municipal parking operations derive their operating budgets 
from parking revenue. The Authority also funds its operating budget, including debt service, from 
parking revenue. Revenue from parking ticket fines goes to the general fund of the City and Miami-
Dade County governments. 
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Revenues Industry (1) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

On-street facilities 20.1% 50.7% 51.3% 50.8% 50.3% 41.7%
Off-street facilities 35.2 15.2 14.9 14.0 11.9 11.3
Parking lots 13.4 30.1 29.3 30.1 31.6 31.6
Penalties and fines 14.0 — — — — —
Interest 2.4 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.5 1.7
Management and

administrative fees 0.7 2.9 3.5 4.2 4.8 12.5
Parking taxes 0.8 — — — — —
Other, including towing 

revenue 13.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.2

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

(1) Source: Benchmarking The Parking Profession,  published by the International Parking Institute (IPI), 1998.

Where the money comes from
Authority

 

In the United States and Canada, the average municipal operations include 12 surface lots and 
2 garages. The Authority’s operation includes 74 surface lots and 15 garages. Within the 
United States, municipal parking operations average 9,500 spaces in the Northeast, 5,000 in the 
Southeast, 4,200 in the Midwest, and more than 11,000 on the West Coast. The average number of 
municipal on-street parking spaces ranged from 750 within cities with populations under 50,000 to 
more than 22,800 within cities with populations of over 1 million. The Authority manages 
approximately 10,400 on-street parking spaces within the City of Miami. 

The following is a summary of municipal on-street and off-street parking spaces with related 
population sizes: 

Total
City size (1) spaces (1)

0 to 100,000 2,500  
100,000 to 200,000 5,000  
250,000 to 500,000 7,800  
500,000 to 1 million 20,800  
+ 1 million 22,800  

The Authority 35,750  
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The following is a summary of municipal parking expenses nationwide compared to the Authority: 

Where the money goes to
Authority

Disbursements Industry (1) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Returned to government 1.7% 25.2% 24.6% 20.8% 25.3% 8.6%
Interest expense 19.2 14.0 15.0 13.5 10.7 4.4
Contract service, rentals, and other 14.8 27.9 26.1 33.7 32.1 34.5
Utilities and insurance 6.6 4.4 4.7 4.5 3.7 6.2
Maintenance and repairs 21.9 5.1 5.2 4.0 3.3 4.9
Personnel 35.8 23.4 24.4 23.5 24.9 41.4

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

(1) Source: Benchmarking The Parking Profession,  published by the International Parking Institute (IPI), 1998.

Financial Highlights 

The following is a summary of financial highlights of the Authority for the fiscal years ended 
September 30, 2009 through 2013 (amounts in dollars, except debt service ratio): 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Total revenue including interest $ 22,789,679  24,026,477  25,561,013  26,592,969  27,803,564  
Operating expenses before

depreciation and
amortization (16,070,653)  (15,567,070) (14,551,342) (14,744,729)   (15,677,648) 

Depreciation and amortization (2,545,454)    (3,429,841)   (3,524,124)   (3,570,487)     (3,756,581)   
Interest expense (a) (1,024,037)     (3,232,379)     (3,699,643)     (3,653,961)     (3,620,048)     
Nonoperating income

(expenses) (b) 519                (5,580,242)     (8,245)            2,479,520      (71,503)          

Net income before
operating transfers
and contributed

capital $ 3,150,054  (3,783,055) 3,777,659  7,103,312  4,677,784  

Debt service coverage ratio
(see Exhibit 3) 3.61  2.06  2.39  2.57  2.61  

Property, plant, and 
equipment, net $ 74,801,511  76,943,652  74,994,947  72,594,380  69,854,368  

Bonds payable, net of current portion
 and unamortized discount/premium $ 46,853,854  69,440,935  68,599,753  67,708,573  66,772,392  

Amount available in restricted
reserve accounts, net $ 4,644,348  10,751,706  9,066,881  7,558,691  7,580,185  

Number of parking spaces 
(see Exhibit 5) 32,606  28,452  27,986  35,641  35,750  

Average revenue per space 
(see Exhibit 6) $ 855.23  1,161.05  1,246.26  1,177.96  1,234.57  

(a) Interest expense includes amortization of bond discounts/premiums and is net of interest capitalized during the year.

(b) Nonoperating income/expenses include gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets, and valuation changes due to valuing
investments at fair market value.  In fiscal year 2010, amount includes $5.8 million in expenses related to the early 
extinguishment of an interest rate swap agreement in connection with the Series 2008 bonds.  In fiscal year 2012,
amount includes gains on sale of property and equipment.  Amounts exclude any transfers of excess revenue made
to the City.
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Excess Revenue Transfers to the City -   Excess revenue to the City are guided by language in the 
1998 bond ordinance, Section 509, which states that after satisfying all required transfers to the 
revenue, interest, principal, sinking fund, and renewal and replacement accounts, “The Department, 
at its option, may apply any amounts remaining in the General Reserve Account” for various 
purposes including transfer to the City. For fiscal year 2013, the Department has recorded transfers 
to the City totaling approximately $6.5 million. 

Budgetary Controls 

The Board reviews and approves an annual operational budget which includes the detail of 
anticipated revenue and expenses for each facility and specific areas of responsibility. Once 
approved by the Board, the budget is submitted to the City Commission for ratification at a public 
hearing. 

As part of the budget review process, two reports are submitted to the Board. These include: 1) a 
monthly and year-to-date statement of revenue and expenses designed to show actual financial 
performance vs. budget and prior year’s actual results, and 2) a five-year strategic plan which 
provides, among other things, estimates and projections of future capital projects, changes to 
operations and financial performance. Based on a review of these reports, the Board determines if 
the overall Authority financial performance justifies proceeding with capital projects in their 
established priority order. 

To help ensure that the financial stability of the Authority is maintained throughout the 
implementation of the capital program, the Board uses the above budget review process in its 
capital implementation authorization process. In this process, financial resources available for the 
capital program and income availability for debt service are monitored on a regular basis. The 
expected revenue level must be achieved before additional spending for new projects is authorized. 

Accounting Systems and Internal Control 

The Authority follows GAAP applicable to governmental units. The accounting records are 
maintained on a full-accrual basis. 

The Authority utilizes a custom-designed computerized garage revenue control system that 
significantly improves accuracy of daily audits of garage operations. The system, by the use of a 
magnetic stripe reader, automatically enters and records all ticket transaction information into the 
computer to enhance the internal accounting controls of the Authority. 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 
structure designed to help ensure that the assets of the Authority are protected from loss, theft or 
misuse and to help ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of 
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure has been designed to 
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding safeguarding of assets against loss from 
unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial 
statements and maintaining accountability. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the 
cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of costs 
and benefits requires estimates and judgment by management. All internal control evaluations occur 
within the above framework. 

Major Initiatives 

Accomplishments for the Authority during fiscal year 2013 included the following: 
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Command Center - The Authority centralized its operation which facilitates the monitoring of all 
automated facilities and on-street Pay and Display machines from one central location.  Currently, 
the Command Center staff provides 24/7 live response to all inquiries received from customers; 
whether they are experiencing problems at a machine or are in need of processing a disabled 
transaction.  The creation of this center has allowed for an increase in efficiencies to our operations 
as well as to an improvement to the levels customer service we offer.   

Pay-By-Phone – The Pay-By-Phone program continues to attract new users.  Its main draw is the 
convenience it affords users when they need to pay for their parking.  As the innovator of this 
technology in our region, the Authority has benefited from the subsequent implementation of the 
Pay-By-Phone program in the neighboring cities of Coral Gables and South Miami.  As of 
September 2013, approximately 172,600 vehicles have registered to participate in the program, 
which has generated approximately $4.7 million in parking revenue since its inception.   

Car sharing program – The Authority has maintained a successful partnership with Car2Go, a car-
sharing company. The car-sharing service offered by Cars2Go is Miami’s latest mobility 
alternative, affording its members all the comforts and conveniences of vehicle ownership without 
the hassles and costs.  At $0.38 per minute, Car2Go members have access to 240 blue and white 
SMART cars which are scattered throughout the City of Miami in convenient locations. Car2Go 
drivers can end their one-way journeys in most of the City’s non-restricted curb side parking spaces, 
any Residential Parking Restricted Neighborhoods and all parking meter/pay station locations 
without having to pay in the City of Miami.  Car2Go pays the Authority $48,000 per month for the 
use of the City’s parking spaces. 

Pay by Plate – The Authority rolled out the installation of a new generation of on-street, multi-
space equipment that allows customers to pay for parking using the vehicle’s license plate.  This 
new technology differs from our current pay and display machine inventory found throughout the 
City in that a customer will not have to return to their vehicle to display a paid receipt.  The 
customer will be able to continue to their destination once payment has been made.  Additionally, in 
certain locations the customers have the option to extend their time by phone.  

Prospects for the Future 

The Authority has been very active in evaluating parking demand and anticipating future parking 
needs in the various areas within the City. The projects include: 

 The Authority will continue to install on-street, multi-space, pay-by-plate equipment which 
will change the way customers pay for their parking. The expanded availability of this 
equipment along with the additional option to use Pay-by-Phone, will facilitate and further 
enhance a customer’s parking experience.  

  The Authority continues to seek out potential joint venture arrangements that will better 
serve the parking needs of the community.  We will also monitor potential projects 
throughout the City that may support additional parking inventory.  The Authority will play 
a role in the development of the parking facilities at Grove Bay, Coconut Grove Playhouse 
and Virginia Key. 

 The Authority will continue its educational campaign to inform the public about the ease of 
using the Pay-By-Phone and the Pay-by-Plate payment option. Technology enhancements 
continue to create dramatic changes in the parking industry and the Authority will be sure to 
evaluate all technology offerings as they emerge.  
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Independent Auditor's Report 
 
To the Chairperson and Members of the Board 

Department of Off-Street Parking 
of the City of Miami, Florida 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Department of Off-Street Parking of the City of Miami, Florida, a component unit of the City of 
Miami, Florida d/b/a Miami Parking Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 
2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits.  We did not audit the 
financial statements of the aggregate remaining fund information.  Those statements were audited by other auditors 
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the 
aggregate remaining fund information, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our audits in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 

Opinions 
 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Department of Off-Street Parking of the City of Miami, Florida as of 
September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis and schedules of funding progress be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We and other auditors have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information  
 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Authority’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, supplemental schedule, and statistical section 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The supplemental schedule is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by 
us and other auditors.  In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the 
report of the other auditors, the supplemental schedule is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated January 23, 2014 and 
January 21, 2013 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The 
purpose of those reports is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 

 
 
 
Miami, Florida 
January 23, 2014 
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Department of Off-Street Parking of the City of Miami, Florida (the 
“City”), a component unit of the City of Miami, Florida ( the “City”), d/b/a Miami Parking Authority (the “Authority”) is 
designed to:  (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the Authority’s 
financial activity, and (c) identify changes in the Authority’s financial position. 
 
Using These Financial Statements 
 
These financial statements have been prepared using the requirements stipulated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for 
State and Local Governments (“GASB 34”).  Under GASB 34, the Authority is considered a special purpose 
government engaged as a business-type activity.  As such, the Authority uses the economic resources measurement 
focus and accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The following financial statements are presented: 
 
The statement of net position presents the financial position of the Authority as of a specific date.  It provides 
information about the nature and amounts of resources (assets), obligations (liabilities) and net position. 
 
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position present changes in net position (revenues 
and expenses) over the course of the year.  The change in net position may be useful in assessing whether the 
Authority’s financial position improved or deteriorated for the year.  This statement measures the Authority’s 
profitability and success in funding its expenses through user charges. 
 
The statement of cash flows presents the cash activities of the Authority segregated by four major cash flow 
categories:  operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and investing 
activities.  This statement may be useful in determining changes in the liquidity of the Authority and in understanding 
how cash and cash equivalents were used during the year. 
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Financial Highlights 
 
A summary of the Authority’s net position and changes in net position is presented below together with pertinent 
comments and information: 
 

2013 2012 2011

Current and other assets 21,672  $             21,516  $             19,234  $             
Capital assets, net 69,854                 72,594                 74,995                 

Total assets 91,526                 94,110                 94,229                 

Current and other liabilities 8,056                   7,730                   7,911                   
Long-term debt outstanding 68,422                 69,509                 70,550                 

Total liabilities 76,478                 77,239                 78,461                 

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,888                   8,688                   11,734                 
Restricted for debt service 991                      960                      910                      
Unrestricted net assets 7,169                   7,223                   3,123                   

Total net position 15,048  $             16,871  $             15,767  $             

Summary of Net Position
September 30,

(In thousands)

 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2013, capital assets decreased by $2,740,000 primarily due to depreciation and 
amortization, partially offset by $1,007,000 in capital asset additions. 
 
During fiscal year 2011-2012, current and other assets increased by $2,282,000 compared to fiscal year 2011-2012. 
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $3,892,000, primarily due to the sale of a parcel of land for 
approximately $3,497,000.  Restricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $1,508,000, primarily due to the use 
of these funds for capital projects.  Capital assets decreased by approximately $2,401,000 mainly due to depreciation 
and amortization, as well as the sale of a land parcel with a net book value of $1,013,000, partially offset by 
$2,177,000 in capital asset additions. 
 
During fiscal year 2012-2013, current and other liabilities increased by $326,000 primarily due to an increase in 
accounts payable in the amount of $348,000.  The increase in accounts payable mainly results from liabilities 
associated with expenditures incurred in connection with on-street pay and display machines.  Long-term debt 
decreased by $1,087,000 due to payments made on the 1998 Series Bonds and the City of Miami Loan during the 
year.  Net investment in capital assets decreased by $1,800,000 due to depreciation recorded during the year, offset 
by debt payments made on the 1998 Series Bonds and the City of Miami Loan. 
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For the year ended September 30, 2012, current and other liabilities decreased by $181,000 due to an increase in 
the amount due from the Miami Ballpark Parking Facilities owned by the City totaling $649,000, partially offset by a 
decrease in the amount due from the Gusman and Olympia Special Revenue Funds to the City in the amount of 
$259,000.  The Miami Ballpark Parking Facilities began parking operations in December 2011.  Long-term debt 
decreased by $1,041,000 due to payments made on the 1998 Series Bonds and the City of Miami Loan during the 
year.  Net investments in capital assets decreased by $3,046,000 due to capital asset depreciation recorded during 
the year, as well as a decrease in bond proceeds available for capital projects. 
 

2013 2012 2011

Revenues:
Charges for parking services 26,707  $             25,410  $             24,228  $             
Management and administrative fees 816                      920                      1,086                   
Miscellaneous other income 267                      2,664                   197                      
Investment income (expense) (59)                       79                        41                        

Total revenues 27,731                 29,073                 25,552                 

Expenses:
Labor costs 6,031                   5,943                   6,484                   
Other operating expenses 9,646                   8,802                   8,067                   
Depreciation and amortization 3,757                   3,570                   3,524                   
Interest 3,620                   3,654                   3,700                   

Total expenses 23,054                 21,969                 21,775                 

Excess before payments to
primary government 4,677                   7,104                   3,777                   

Payments to primary government (6,500)                  (6,000)                  (5,712)                  
Change in net position (1,823)                  1,104                   (1,935)                  

Total net position, beginning of the year 16,871                 15,767                 17,702                 
Total net position, end of the year 15,048  $             16,871  $             15,767  $             

Changes in Net Position
Years Ended September 30, 

(In thousands)
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Revenue 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2013, parking revenue increased by $1,298,000 or 5% from 2012.  Parking lot 
revenue increased by $573,000 or 7% due to an increase in the number of patrons parking at the Authority’s lot 
facilities.  On-street meter revenue increased $448,000 or 3% from 2012 due primarily to an increase in transient 
parkers visiting certain areas of the City, such as Downtown Miami. 
 
Miscellaneous other income decreased by $2,397,000 during fiscal year 2012-2013 when compared to the prior year.  
The decrease resulted from the sale of a parcel of land during the prior year that resulted in a gain of $2,480,000. 
 
For fiscal year 2011-2012, parking revenue increased by $1,182,000 or 5% from 2011.  On-street meter revenue 
increased by $674,000 or 5% from 2011 due primarily to an increase in transient parkers visiting the City of Miami.  
Off-street facilities revenue increased by $385,000 or 11% primarily due to a rise in the number of patrons parking in 
the Courthouse Center Garage during the year as compared to fiscal year 2010-2011. 
 
Miscellaneous other income increased by $2,467,000 during the year ended September 30, 2012 when compared to 
the prior year.  The increase was primarily due to the sale of a parcel of land during the year that resulted in a gain of 
$2,480,000.   
 
Expenses 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2013, operating expenses before depreciation and amortization increased by 
$933,000 or 6% from the prior year.  Legal and professional fees increased by $349,000 or 30% from prior year.  As 
in the prior year, the increase is mainly due to an increased number of on-street PAD’s being placed under service 
contracts, as well as an increase in the rates charged by outside vendors for servicing the PAD’s.  Other expenses 
increased by $293,000 or 22% as compared to fiscal year 2011-2012 mainly due to an increase in on-street meter 
parts purchased during the year to service the equipment as compared to the prior year.  Property rentals and 
assessments increased by $108,000 or 4% in 2013 as compared to prior year due to an increase in revenue related 
managed lots where the Authority must pay a portion of the revenue back to the lessor.  The payment to the lessor 
for their portion of the revenue is reflected in this line item. 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2012, operating expenses before depreciation and amortization increased by 
$194,000 or 1% from the prior year.  Property rentals and assessments increased $374,000 or 14% during the 
current year as compared to the prior year due to the Authority having an increased number of revenue sharing lots 
in the current year.  Repairs and maintenance increased by $180,000 during 2012 as compared to prior year mainly 
due to an increase in rates charged by vendors for servicing the automated equipment located in the Authority’s  
facilities.  Legal and professional fees increased by $180,000 mainly due to an increased number of on-street PAD’s 
being placed under service contracts, as well as an increase in the rates charged by outside vendors for servicing the 
PAD’s.  These increases are partially offset by a decrease in labor costs.  Labor costs decreased by $541,000 or 8% 
primarily due to continued staff reductions associated with the Authority’s automation of garage facilities. 
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Capital Assets 
 
The following is a summary of the Authority’s capital assets: 
 

2013 2012 2011

Land 13,138  $             13,138  $             14,152  $             
Buildings and structures 74,280                 72,311                 72,192                 
Leasehold improvements 10,637                 10,488                 10,630                 
Furniture and equipment 17,004                 16,894                 19,492                 
Construction in progress -                       1,804                   233                      

Total gross capital assets 115,059               114,635               116,699               
Less accumulated depreciation (45,205)                (42,041)                (41,704)                

Net capital assets 69,854  $             72,594  $             74,995  $             

Schedule of Capital Assets
September 30, 

(In thousands)

 
 
During fiscal year 2012-2013, capital assets additions totaling $1,007,000 were made.  Major acquisitions during the 
year were as follows: 
 

2013 2012 2011

Buildings and structures 1,970  $               319  $                  603  $                  
Equipment 693                      237                      562                      
Construction in progress, net of transfers (1,804)                  1,571                   105                      
Other capital assets 148                      50                        303                      

Total 1,007  $               2,177  $               1,573  $               

Years ended September 30,

(In thousands)

 
 
See Note 4 to the financial statements for more information on capital assets. 
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Debt 
 

2013 2012 2011

Current portion of total debt 1,155  $               1,110  $               1,060  $               
Long-term portion of total debt 68,422                 69,509                 70,550                 

(In thousands)

Schedule of Long-Term Debt
September 30,

 
 
The Authority did not issue any new debt during fiscal years 2013 or 2012.  In November 2009, the Authority issued 
$60,110,000 of tax-exempt, fixed rate revenue and revenue refunding bonds and $6,485,000 in taxable, fixed-rate 
revenue and revenue refunding bonds (“Series 2009 Revenue Bonds”).  The proceeds of these bonds were used to:  
(1) fully redeem and refund the then outstanding Series 2008 revenue bonds, (2) pay for costs of issuance on the 
Series 2009 revenue bonds, (3) pay for additional construction costs on the Courthouse Center Garage, and (4) pay 
fees to terminate the then existing interest rate swap agreement in connection with the Series 2008 revenue bonds.  
The Series 2009 Revenue Bonds have an underlying rating of A2 from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. as of 
September 30, 2013. 
 
See Note 5 to the financial statements for more information on long-term debt.  The Authority made all its scheduled 
principal and interest payments during fiscal years 2013, 2012, and 2011. 
 
Economic Factors and Future Developments 
 
The Authority’s staff and Board considered many factors when adopting the fiscal year 2013 budget.  Included 
among these factors were uncertainties regarding health insurance costs, general property insurance costs, 
construction costs, and various economic indicators. 



Department of Off-Street Parking 
of the City of Miami, Florida 
 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
 

9 

Off-street/On-street Rate Structure 
 
During the year ended September 30, 2013, the following rates were in effect for the Authority’s off-street facilities 
and on-street spaces: 
 
 On-street meter rates consisted of $0.75, $1.00, or $1.25 per hour depending on the specific location of the 

meter. 
 On-street monthly permit rates ranged from $35.00 to $85.00 per month. 
 Off-street surface lot rates ranged from $1.00 per hour up to a maximum of $20.00 per day and $21.53 to 

$86.14 per month. 
 Garage rates range from $1.00 per hour up to a maximum of $19.00 per day and from $50.00 to $155.00 per 

month. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
The Authority’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors) with a general overview of the authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability.  If 
users have questions about the report or need additional financial information, they should contact Scott Simpson, 
Chief Financial Officer of the Department of Off-Street Parking of the City of Miami, 40 N.W. 3rd Street, Suite 1103, 
Miami, Florida 33128, or visit the Authority’s website at www.miamiparking.com. 
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2013 and 2012

Assets 2013 2012
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 10,681,854  $       10,212,758  $       
Investments and accrued interest receivable 1,641                    6,100                    
Accounts and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $5,178 and $11,795, respectively 492,563                401,469                
Due from other government 287,557                367,780                
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 261,842                446,505                

Total unrestricted current assets 11,725,457           11,434,612           

Current Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,912,267             2,877,362             

Total restricted current assets 2,912,267             2,877,362             
Total current assets 14,637,724           14,311,974           

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4,667,918             4,681,329             
Investments 97,550                  99,179                  
Rental advances on leased lots, net 107,388                117,657                
Unamortized bond issuance costs 1,779,853             1,881,249             
Other assets 381,463                424,176                
Capital assets, net 69,854,368           72,594,380           

Total noncurrent assets 76,888,540           79,797,970           
Total assets 91,526,264  $       94,109,944  $       
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2013 and 2012

Liabilities and Net Position 2013 2012
Liabilities:
Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:

Accounts payable 1,144,728  $         797,298  $            
Accrued payroll 132,145                105,707                
Accrued liabilities 1,383,930             1,379,132             
Accrued vacation and sick pay 384,276                426,583                
Deposits 124,884                131,432                
Due to City of Miami, net 1,245,484             1,397,461             
Unearned revenue 472,503                393,882                

Total payable from unrestricted assets 4,887,950             4,631,495             

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Current portion of bonds payable 1,005,000             960,000                
Current portion – City of Miami loan 150,000                150,000                
Interest payable 1,757,259             1,767,354             

Total payable from restricted assets 2,912,259             2,877,354             
Total current liabilities 7,800,209             7,508,849             

Long-term liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick pay 172,693                150,308                
Other post-employment benefit obligation 82,296                  71,324                  
Bonds payable, net of current portion and unamortized 

discounts/premiums 66,772,392           67,708,573           
City of Miami Loan 1,650,000             1,800,000             

Total long-term liabilities 68,677,381           69,730,205           
Total liabilities 76,477,590           77,239,054           

Commitments and Contingencies
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 6,888,348             8,688,089             
Restricted for debt service 991,400                960,297                
Unrestricted 7,168,926             7,222,504             

Total net position 15,048,674  $       16,870,890  $       

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Operating revenues:

Parking lots 8,376,690  $         7,804,016  $         
On-street facilities 14,097,206           13,649,453           
Off-street facilities 4,233,463             3,956,386             
Management and administrative fees 816,185                919,904                
Other 267,018                183,821                

Total operating revenues 27,790,562           26,513,580           

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 6,031,491             5,942,992             
Security 808,592                756,810                
Property rentals and assessments 3,117,764             3,009,704             
Repairs and maintenance 1,312,713             1,269,764             
Insurance 455,510                464,168                
Legal and professional 1,515,455             1,166,151             
Utilities 675,246                680,615                
Printing and supplies 153,579                139,925                
Other 1,607,298             1,314,600             

Total operating expenses 15,677,648           14,744,729           
Operating income before depreciation and 
amortization 12,112,914           11,768,851           

Depreciation and amortization 3,746,311             3,560,217             
Amortization of rental advances 10,270                  10,270                  

Operating income 8,356,333             8,198,364             

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment and other income (expense) (58,501)                 79,389                  
Interest expense (3,620,048)            (3,653,961)            
Excess revenue distribution to City of Miami (6,500,000)            (6,000,000)            
Gains on disposals of capital assets -                        2,479,520             

Total nonoperating expenses, net (10,178,549)          (7,095,052)            

Change in net position (1,822,216)            1,103,312             

Net position, beginning of year 16,870,890           15,767,578           
Net position, end of year 15,048,674  $       16,870,890  $       

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
 



 

13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 



 

14 

Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash received from customers 27,820,871  $     26,707,240  $     
Cash paid to suppliers (9,064,738)          (8,858,626)          
Cash paid to employees for services (6,014,003)          (5,945,978)          

Net cash provided by operating activities 12,742,130         11,902,636         
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Interest received 17,674                24,685                
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 1,628                  -                      
Purchase of investments -                      (112)                    
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (71,714)               53,398                

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (52,412)               77,971                
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities

Excess revenue distribution to City of Miami (6,400,000)          (5,872,500)          
Payments to (received from) other governments 80,223                (86,677)               
Payments to primary government (251,977)             (339,306)             

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (6,571,754)          (6,298,483)          
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities

Payments for capital acquisitions (1,006,302)          (2,176,700)          
Proceeds from sales of capital assets -                      3,496,571           
Repayments of bonds (960,000)             (910,000)             
Interest paid on long-term debt (3,511,072)          (3,557,822)          
Repayments on City of Miami loan (150,000)             (150,000)             

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (5,627,374)          (3,297,951)          
Net increase  in cash and cash equivalents 490,590              2,384,173           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year (including $7,558,691 and
$9,066,889 in restricted assets for 2013 and 2012, respectively) 17,771,449         15,387,276         

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (including $7,580,185 and
$7,758,691 in restricted assets for 2013 and 2012, respectively) 18,262,039  $     17,771,449  $     
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By

Operating Activities:
Operating income 8,356,333  $       8,198,364  $       
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,746,311           3,560,217           
Amortization of rental advances 10,270                10,270                
Recovery (provision) for doubtful accounts (6,617)                 (17,538)               
Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts and other receivables (84,477)               189,622              
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 235,808              (49,772)               
Other assets 42,713                7,963                  
Accounts payable 347,430              (11,404)               
Accrued payroll 26,438                2,561                  
Accrued liabilities 4,798                  21,825                
Accrued vacation and sick pay (19,922)               (16,068)               
Deposits (6,548)                 5,281                  
Other post-employment benefit obligation 10,972                10,521                
Unearned revenue 78,621                (9,206)                 

Net cash provided by operating activities 12,742,130  $     11,902,636  $     

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash and Noncapital 
Related Financing Activities:

Excess revenue distributions to City of Miami on account 1,300,000  $       1,200,000  $       
1,300,000  $       1,200,000  $       

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
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of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Statements of Fiduciary Net Position
September 30, 2013 and 2012

Assets 2013 2012
Investments at fair value:

Equity fund 9,669,886  $        8,202,519  $        
Fixed income fund 4,616,109            5,079,125            
Short-term cash investment fund 273,669               293,817               

Total investments 14,559,664          13,575,461          

Other assets:
Accrued interest 12,717                 7,749                   

Total assets 14,572,381          13,583,210          

Net position held in trust for pension benefits 14,572,381  $      13,583,210  $      

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Additions

Contributions:
Employer 335,126  $           509,014  $           
Employees 251,538               272,844               

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 1,260,243            1,611,470            
Dividends and interest on investments 457,229               402,522               

Total additions 2,304,136            2,795,850            

Deductions
Benefits paid to participants 1,222,190            541,463               
Administrative expenses 92,775                 71,026                 

Total deductions 1,314,965            612,489               

Net increase 989,171               2,183,361            
Net position held in trust for pension benefits, beginning of year 13,583,210          11,399,849          
Net position held in trust for pension benefits, end of year 14,572,381  $      13,583,210  $      

See Notes to Financial Statements.  
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Note 1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Description:  The Department of Off-Street Parking of the City of Miami, Florida, a component unit of the City of 
Miami, Florida, d/b/a Miami Parking Authority (the “Authority”) was created in 1955 by a special act of the Florida 
State Legislature (Laws of Florida, Chapter 30997, as amended) and subsequently incorporated into the City of 
Miami, Florida’s (the “City”) Charter in 1968.  The Authority is an agency and instrumentality of the City, which owns 
and operates parking facilities within the City. 
 
The five-member Authority Board (the “Board”) exercises supervisory control over the operations of the Authority.  
The City Commission (the “Commission”) has reserved the right to confirm new Board members, to establish and set 
rates and charges for parking services, to approve the Authority’s operating budget, and to authorize the issuance of 
revenue bonds.  All other duties have been vested in the Board. 
 
The City Commission is financially accountable for the Authority and, therefore, it is accounted for as a Business-
Type Activity in the City’s comprehensive annual financial report as a discretely presented component unit. 
 
Reporting entity:  The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (“GASB”) Codification Section 2100, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial 
reporting entity.  For financial reporting purposes, the Authority includes those operations that are generally 
controlled by or dependent on the Authority.  Control by or dependence on the Authority is determined on the basis of 
such factors as budget adoption, outstanding debt secured by revenue of the Authority, and obligation of the 
Authority to finance any deficit that may occur or receipt of significant subsidies from the Authority. 
 
Additionally, the Authority reports and is the sole sponsor of a defined-benefit pension plan (the “Plan”) that is 
mandatory for all full-time Authority employees.  The Authority accounts for the assets it holds in a trustee capacity 
for its employees participating in the plan, in a fiduciary fund. 
 
The Authority manages under a separate management agreement, the operations of the James L. 
Knight/International Center Garage for the City.  Under the terms of the agreement, the Authority receives a 
management fee based on a percentage of gross revenue for the garage, which is recorded as revenue from 
management and administrative fees in the Authority’s financial statements.  Because all ownership rights and 
ultimate financial responsibility for these operations are held by the City, these operations are excluded from the 
Authority’s reporting entity. 
 
During December 2011, the Authority entered into an Interlocal Cooperation and Lease agreement to manage the 
parking and retail facilities of the City’s Miami Ballpark Parking Facilities (the “Facility”).  The Authority has the 
responsibility of promoting, managing and maintaining the parking facilities pursuant to the agreement, and abiding 
by all applicable laws and ordinances.  Because all ownership rights and ultimate financial responsibility for these 
operations are held by the City, these operations are excluded from the Authority’s reporting entity.  The Authority 
provides personnel and administrative support to aid in the operations of the Facilities.  All direct personnel and 
administrative costs incurred by the Authority in connection with the operation of the Facilities are charged to the 
Facilities and reimbursed by the City on a monthly basis.  There are no other management fees charged to the 
Facilities. 
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Note 1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The following is a summary of the Authority’s significant accounting policies: 
 
Basis of accounting:  The Authority utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for its business-type activities and its 
fiduciary funds.  Under the full-accrual basis, revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
obligations are incurred or when benefits are received.  These financial statements are presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents:  Cash includes cash on hand, amounts in demand deposits and cash equivalents, which 
are short-term, highly liquid securities with known market values and maturities of less than three months. For 
purposes of the accompanying statements of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
Investments:  The Authority’s investments with maturity dates of greater than one year at the time of purchase are 
reported at fair value using quoted market price or the best available estimate thereof.  Fair value is defined by GASB 
Statement No. 31, Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, as the amount at which a financial instrument 
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.  
Investments in participating interest-earning contracts that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one 
year or less, are reported at amortized costs.  All investment income, including changes in the fair value of 
investments, is reported as revenue in the accompanying statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net 
assets. 
 
Accounts receivable:  Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.  The Authority fully 
reserves for all receivables greater than 90 days. 
 
Restricted assets:  Assets required to be segregated by bond ordinance or contractual obligations are identified as 
restricted assets.  Restricted assets at September 30, 2013 and 2012, represent monies mandated under the terms 
of City Ordinance 11693, as amended by City Ordinance No. 11719 (collectively, the “Series 1998 Bond Ordinance”), 
as supplemented by City Resolution No. 98-814 related to the Series 1998 Parking System Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, and as supplemented by Ordinance No. 13092 (collectively, the “Series 2009 Bond Ordinance”). 
 
Capital assets:  Capital assets are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.  Contributed capital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair value when received.  The Authority capitalizes major renewals and betterments for 
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment that exceed $1,000 in cost.  Expenditures for minor renewals and 
betterments that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life are expensed when incurred. 
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Note 1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  During the 
construction phase of capital assets, interest of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of 
the assets constructed.  Interest expense capitalized is offset by interest earned on project specific unspent bond 
proceeds of tax-exempt debt. In fiscal year 2013 and 2012, the Authority did not capitalize interest charges as no 
major construction projects were undertaken.   
 
Depreciation on capital assets is provided using the straight-line method.  Leasehold improvements are amortized on 
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the assets.  Depreciable lives are as 
follows: 
 
Asset Type: Years
Building and structures 40
Leasehold improvements 5 – 20
Furniture and fixtures 5 – 10
Equipment 3 – 10

 
 
When capital assets are disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts 
and gains or losses are reflected as part of change in net assets. 
 
Unamortized bond premiums, discounts, bond issuance costs, and cost of refunding:  Discount/premium on bonds, 
bond issuance costs, and cost of refunding on the revenue bonds are amortized using the straight-line method over 
the life of the related bond issue since the results are not significantly different from the effective interest method of 
amortization. 
 
Vacation and other compensated absences:  The Authority accrues a liability for vacation and other compensated 
absences as the benefits are earned by its employees up to the maximum allowed to be carried forward into the 
subsequent year.  The accrual amounted to $556,969 and $576,891 at September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Unearned revenue:  Unearned revenue consists primarily of parking fees received in advance from monthly 
customers.  Such amounts are recognized as revenue in subsequent periods as they are earned. 
 
Net position:  Equity in the Authority’s statement of net position is displayed in three categories:  1) net investment in 
capital assets, (2) restricted for debt service, and 3) unrestricted.  Net investment in capital assets consists of capital 
assets reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct or improve 
those assets, excluding unexpended proceeds.  Net positions are reported as restricted when there are third party 
limitations (statutory, contractual or bond covenant) on their use.  Unrestricted net position consists of all net position 
that do not meet the definition of either of the other two components.  
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Note 1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Operating revenues and expenses:  The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating revenue and expenses in its statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  Operating 
revenues are those revenues earned from parking fee charges to customers and ancillary activities such as 
management fees earned from the management of parking facilities and towing revenue.   
 
Operating expenses relate to the cost of providing those services and also include administrative expenses and 
depreciation of capital assets.  All other revenues and expenses that are not a result of the Authority’s parking 
functions are considered non-operating.  Examples of non-operating items include investment earnings, interest 
expense, gains and losses on disposal of capital assets, and excess revenue distribution to the City of Miami. 
 
Use of estimates:  The preparation of the basic financial statements requires management of the Authority to make a 
number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Reclassifications:  Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority’s cash, cash equivalents and investments, exclusive of the Pension 
Plan investments, consisted of the following: 
 

2013 2012
Investments:
U.S. government and federal agency securities 97,550  $             99,179  $             
Florida State Board of Administration 290                      289                      

Total investments 97,840                 99,468                 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Money market mutual funds 14,495,082           14,526,839           
Demand deposits 3,644,859             3,124,912             
Petty cash 122,090                119,698                

Total cash and cash equivalents 18,262,031           17,771,449           
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 18,359,871  $      17,870,917  $      
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Investments:  The Authority is authorized to invest in U.S. government obligations and its agencies or 
instrumentalities, direct obligation of the State of Florida or agencies and instrumentalities, collateralized mortgage 
obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United States, obligations of states, agencies, 
counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any state, rated by a nationally recognized investment firm with not 
less than an “A” rating, fully collateralized repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, prime 
domestic commercial paper, prime domestic bankers’ acceptances, insured or collateralized certificate of deposit. 
 
The policy’s investment objects are the preservation of capital and the protection of investment principal, strive to 
maximize the return on the portfolio by avoiding unreasonable investment risk, provide sufficient liquidity to meet the 
Authority’s projected operating and capital requirements, and to control risks regarding specific security types, or 
individual financial institutions by diversifying its investments. 
 
Interest rate risk:  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates.  The Authority’s investment policy does not have provisions that limit investment 
maturity as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  Information 
about the sensitivity of the fair value of the Authority’s investments and market interest rate fluctuations is provided by 
the following table that shows the distribution of the Authority’s debt-type investments by maturity at September 30, 
2013 and 2012: 
 

2013
Investment Maturities 

(in years)
Fair

Investment Type Value Less Than 1
U.S. Treasury 97,550  $             97,550  $                     
Florida State Board of Administration 290                      290                              
Money market mutual funds 14,495,082           14,495,082                  

Total 14,592,922  $      14,592,922  $              

2012
Investment Maturities 

(in years)
Fair

Investment Type Value Less Than 1
U.S. treasury 99,179  $             99,179  $                     
Florida State Board of Administration 289                      289                              
Money market mutual funds 14,526,839           14,526,839                  

Total 14,626,307  $      14,626,307  $              
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Credit risk:  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  
The Authority’s investment policy limits credit risk by requiring all fixed-income securities to be rated by Moody’s as 
an A or better.  Investments in the Florida State Board of Administration and the money market mutual funds are not 
rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating agency as of September 30, 2013.  Obligations of the U.S. 
government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk. 
 
Concentration of credit risk:  The Authority’s investment policy seeks diversification to reduce overall portfolio risk 
while attaining market rates of return to enable the Authority to meet all anticipated cash requirements.  The policy 
limits the Authority to holding no more than 30% of local Government Surplus Trust Funds (“SBA”), 10% of federal 
agencies at the time of purchase, no more than 10% of federal agencies in one issuer, 15% of prime domestic and 
foreign bankers’ acceptances at the time of purchase, no more than 5% of bankers’ acceptances in one issuer and 
no more than 10% of all amounts invested in commercial paper and other short-term corporate debt. 
 
Custodial credit risk:  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  It is the Authority’s policy to require that time deposits in 
excess of FDIC insurable limits be secured by collateral or private insurance to protect public deposits in a single 
financial institution if it were to default.  Under Florida statutes, Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, 
the State Treasurer requires all qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or another banking 
institution, eligible collateral equal to between 50% and 125% of the average daily balance for each month of all 
public deposits in excess of any applicable deposit insurance held.  The percentage of eligible collateral (generally, 
U.S. government and agency securities, state or local government debt, corporate bonds) to public deposits is 
dependent upon the depository institution’s financial history and its compliance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 280.  In 
the event of a failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be responsible for 
covering any resulting losses.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty (for example, a broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of 
its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  Consistent with the Authority’s 
investment policy, the investments are held by the Authority’s custodial institution and registered in the Authority’s 
name.  Investments in the Florida State Board of Administration and Money market mutual funds are not subject to 
custodial credit risk. 
 
Pension Plan Investments 
 
At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the investments for the Plan consisted of the following: 
 
Investment Type 2013 2012
Equity fund 9,669,886  $        8,202,519  $        
Fixed-income fund 4,616,109            5,079,125            
Short-term cash investment fund 273,669               293,817               

Total investments 14,559,664  $      13,575,461  $      
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

The Plan’s investment policy, approved by the retirement board for the Plan, stipulates the permissible investments 
and the allowable long-range asset allocation, measured at market value, at the end of each quarter.  The policy 
allows for investment allocations as follows:  
 
Investment Type Minumum Maximum Actual

Equity 55% 75% 68%

Fixed Income 25% 45% 32%

 
 
The Plan’s investments are potentially exposed to various types of investment risk, including credit risk, custodial 
credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. 
 
Credit Risk:  The Plan’s investment policy requires all fixed-income securities to be rated by Moody’s as an “A” or 
better. 
 
At September 30, 2013, the following represents Moody’s ratings and the market value of the Plan’s fixed-income 
portfolio investments: 
 

Moody's Fair Percentage of
Investments Rating Value Investments
PIMCO 1-5 Yr US Tips Index ETF AAA 285,934  $           6.2%
Vanguard BD Index FDS AAA 424,675               9.2%
PIMCO Investment Grade Bond Fund AAA 551,300               11.9%
Doubleline Total Return Bond Fund AAA 563,743               12.2%
Ridgeworth Fund – Total Return Bond AAA 1,202,738            26.1%
PIMCO FDS Total Return AAA 1,587,719            34.4%

Total 4,616,109  $        100.0%

 
Custodial credit risk:  The Plan does not have custodial credit risk since its investments consist of open-ended mutual 
funds. 
 
Concentration of credit risk:  Investments issued, or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government and investments in 
mutual funds are not subject to any concentration of credit risk. 



Department of Off-Street Parking 
of the City of Miami, Florida 
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida) 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 

26 26 

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 

Interest rate risk:  The Plan’s investment policy does not have provisions that limit investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  Information about the sensitivity 
of the fair values of the Plan’s investments and market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that 
shows the distribution of the Plan’s fixed-income portfolio at September 30, 2013: 
 

Investment
Fair Maturities

Investments Type Value (in years)
PIMCO 1-5 Yr US Tips Index ETF 285,934  $           1-5
Vanguard BD Index FDS 424,675               3
PIMCO Investment Grade Bond Fund 551,300               3-7
Doubleline Total Return Bond Fund 563,743               5
Ridgeworth Fund – Total Return Bond 1,202,738            7
PIMCO FDS Total Return 1,587,719            7

Total 4,616,109  $        
 

 
Foreign currency risk:  At September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, the Plan had no foreign investments.   
 

Note 3. Due to/from City of Miami, Net 

Due from primary government represents amounts owed from the City as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 totaling 
$741,821 and $404,335, respectively.  The balance due from the City represents operating expenses incurred by the 
Authority in connection with the operations of the Miami Ballpark Parking Facilities, offset by revenues received by 
the Authority from the Knight Center Garage.  Both the Miami Ballpark Parking Facilities and the Knight Center 
Garage are owned by the City. 
 
Due to primary government represents amounts owed to the City as of September 30, 2013 and 2012 of $1,987,305 
and $1,801,796, respectively.  The amounts represent money held by the Authority on behalf of the City, and the 
excess revenue distributions payable to the City at year end.   
 
The Authority’s due to primary government, net of amounts due from the City, as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, is 
as follows: 
 

2013 2012
Due to City of Miami

Distribution to the City 1,300,000  $        1,200,000  $        
Other payables 687,305               601,796               

Due from City of Miami (741,821)              (404,335)              
Due to primary government, net 1,245,484  $        1,397,461  $        
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Note 4. Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows: 
 

Balance Additions Deletions Balance Additions Deletions Balance
September 30, and and September 30, and and September 30,

2011 Transfers Transfers 2012 Transfers Transfers 2013
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 14,152,054  $         -$                        (1,013,794)  $          13,138,260  $         -$                        -$                        13,138,260  $         
Construction in progress:

New developments 233,017                  93,908                    (127,968)                 198,957                  1,769                      (200,726)                 -                          
Major renovations -                          1,604,886               -                          1,604,886               2,138                      (1,607,024)              -                          

Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 14,385,071             1,698,794               (1,141,762)              14,942,103             3,907                      (1,807,750)              13,138,260             

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building and structures 72,191,633             319,341                  (200,449)                 72,310,525             1,969,727               -                          74,280,252             
Leasehold improvements 10,630,423             33,563                    (175,776)                 10,488,210             148,721                  -                          10,636,931             
Furniture and fixtures 1,080,795               15,030                    (163,863)                 931,962                  -                          -                          931,962                  
Equipment 18,410,761             237,941                  (2,686,354)              15,962,348             692,660                  (583,506)                 16,071,502             

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 102,313,612           605,875                  (3,226,442)              99,693,045             2,811,108               (583,506)                 101,920,647           

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization:

Building and structures (18,574,502)            (1,903,080)              200,449                  (20,277,133)            (2,094,227)              -                          (22,371,360)            
Leasehold improvements (8,500,071)              (396,665)                 175,776                  (8,720,960)              (404,228)                 -                          (9,125,188)              
Furniture and fixtures (326,918)                 (74,221)                   163,863                  (237,276)                 (66,425)                   -                          (303,701)                 
Equipment (14,302,245)            (1,186,251)              2,683,097               (12,805,399)            (1,181,431)              582,540                  (13,404,290)            

Total accumulated
depreciation (41,703,736)            (3,560,217)              3,223,185               (42,040,768)            (3,746,311)              582,540                  (45,204,539)            
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 60,609,876             (2,954,342)              (3,257)                     57,652,277             (935,203)                 (966)                        56,716,108             
Total capital assets, net 74,994,947  $         (1,255,548)  $          (1,145,019)  $          72,594,380  $         (931,296)  $             (1,808,716)  $          69,854,368  $         
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Note 5. Long-Term Obligations 

Changes in long-term liability activity for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows (in 
thousands): 
 

Balance Balance Amounts Due
September 30, September 30, Within One

2012 Additions Reductions 2013 Year
Bonds payable:

Revenue bonds 70,735  $               -$           (960)  $          69,775  $            1,005  $          
Bond premiums 25                          -             (8)                  17                       -                  
Bond discounts (801)                       -             30                 (771)                    -                  
Deferred Refunding Costs (1,290)                    -             47                 (1,243)                 -                  

City of Miami Loan 1,950                     -             (150)              1,800                  150                 
Other post-employment benefit obligation 71                          11              -                82                       -                  
Compensated absences 576                        444            (463)              557                     384                 

71,266  $               455  $        (1,504)  $       70,217  $            1,539  $          

Balance Balance Amounts Due
September 30, September 30, Within One

2011 Additions Reductions 2012 Year
Bonds payable:

Revenue bonds 71,645  $               -$           (910)  $          70,735  $            960  $             
Bond premiums 34                          -             (9)                  25                       -                  
Bond discounts (831)                       -             30                 (801)                    -                  
Deferred Refunding Costs (1,338)                    -             48                 (1,290)                 -                  

City of Miami Loan 2,100                     -             (150)              1,950                  150                 
Other post-employment benefit obligation 61                          10              -                71                       -                  
Compensated absences 593                        478            (495)              576                     427                 

72,264  $               488  $        (1,486)  $       71,266  $            1,537  $          

 
 



Department of Off-Street Parking 
of the City of Miami, Florida 
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida) 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 

29 29 

Note 5. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Series 1998 Bonds 
 
The City has authorized and issued fixed-rate revenue bonds (Series 1998 bonds) on behalf of the Authority.  The 
principal and interest of the revenue bonds are payable solely from the revenue of the Authority’s parking facilities 
and, accordingly, are included in the accounts of the Authority.  The Series 1998 bonds are secured by a pledge of, 
and payable solely from the net revenue and investment earnings of the Authority.  The interest rate on the Series 
1998 bonds is 4.3%. 
 
The Series 1998 bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. 
 
The Series 1998 bonds are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity, by operation of a sinking fund account, 
at a redemption price equal to par plus interest accrued to the redemption date, on October 1, 2014 and 2015,  in the 
following principal amounts: 
 
Year Ending Principal
October 1, Amount
2014 1,060,000  $        
2015 1,115,000            

2,175,000  $        
 

 
Under the terms of the Series 1998 Ordinance covenants, the City and the Authority are required, among other 
things, to establish rates and collect fees and charges which will be sufficient at all times to: 
 
(a) pay the costs of current expenses for the fiscal year; 
 
(b) create and maintain specified reserves for such purposes; and 
 
(c) maintain a debt service coverage of at least 150%. 
 
The Authority’s debt service requirements to maturity for the Series 1998 bonds are as follows: 
 
Maturing in fiscal year Principal Interest Total
2014 1,005,000  $           140,569  $              1,145,569  $           
2015 1,060,000               86,363                    1,146,363               
2016 1,115,000               29,269                    1,144,269               

Total 3,180,000               256,201                  3,436,201               
Current portion (1,005,000)              (140,569)                 (1,145,569)              

Long-term portion 2,175,000  $           115,632  $              2,290,632  $           
 

 



Department of Off-Street Parking 
of the City of Miami, Florida 
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida) 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 

30 30 

Note 5. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Series 2009 Bonds 
 
On September 24, 2009, the City Commission adopted ordinance 13092 authorizing the Authority to issue up to 
$70.0 million in revenue bonds for the purpose of refunding the then outstanding Series 2008 bonds.  On 
November 5, 2009, the Authority issued $60.110 million in of tax-exempt, fixed-rate revenue refunding bonds and 
$6.485 million in taxable, fixed-rate revenue refunding bonds (“collectively, the Series 2009 Revenue Bonds”).  The 
proceeds of these bonds were used to:  (1) fully redeem and refund the then outstanding Series 2008 bonds, (2) pay 
for costs of issuance on the Series 2009 revenue bonds, (3) pay for additional construction costs on the Courthouse 
Center Garage, and (4) pay fees to terminate the existing interest rate swap agreement in connection with the Series 
2008 bonds.  The Authority refunded the Series 2008 variable rate debt with Series 2009 fixed rate debt.  The Series 
2009 Revenue Bonds are secured by the net revenues of the Authority.  The coupon rates for the tax-exempt fixed-
rate revenue bonds range from 4.25% to 5.35%.  The coupon rates on the taxable, fixed-rate bonds range from 
5.11% to 5.66%.  The Authority’s debt service requirements to maturity on the Series 2009 revenue bonds are as 
follows: 
 

Tax-Exempt Taxable
Maturing in fiscal year Principal Principal Interest Total
2014 -$                     -$                     3,320,122  $        3,320,122  $        
2015 -                       -                       3,320,122            3,320,122            
2016 -                       -                       3,320,122            3,320,122            
2017 -                       1,505,000            3,243,187            4,748,187            
2018 -                       1,585,000            3,157,454            4,742,454            
2019-2023 5,865,000            3,395,000            14,412,425          23,672,425          
2024-2028 11,645,000          -                       11,927,982          23,572,982          
2029-2033 14,770,000          -                       8,612,850            23,382,850          
2034-2038 18,880,000          -                       4,293,919            23,173,919          
2039-2040 8,950,000            -                       237,265               9,187,265            

60,110,000  $      6,485,000  $        55,845,448  $      122,440,448  $    
 

 
Under the terms of the Series 2009 Revenue Bond Ordinance covenants, the City and the Authority are required, 
among other things, to establish rates and collect fees/rentals charges which will be sufficient at all times to: 
 
(a) pay the costs of current expenses for the fiscal year; 
 
(b) create and maintain specified reserves for such purposes; 
 
(c) maintain a debt service coverage of at least 150%. 
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Note 5. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

The Authority’s debt service requirements to maturity on all bonds, payable at September 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 
Maturing in fiscal year Principal Interest Total
2014 1,005,000  $           3,460,691  $           4,465,691  $           
2015 1,060,000               3,406,485               4,466,485               
2016 1,115,000               3,349,391               4,464,391               
2017 1,505,000               3,243,187               4,748,187               
2018 1,585,000               3,157,454               4,742,454               
2019-2023 9,260,000               14,412,425             23,672,425             
2024-2028 11,645,000             11,927,982             23,572,982             
2029-2033 14,770,000             8,612,850               23,382,850             
2034-2038 18,880,000             4,293,919               23,173,919             
2039-2040 8,950,000               237,265                  9,187,265               

69,775,000             56,101,649             125,876,649           
Current portion (1,005,000)              (3,460,691)              (4,465,691)              

Long-term portion 68,770,000  $         52,640,958  $         121,410,958  $       

 
 
The amounts on deposit in the various long-term debt related restricted asset accounts plus accrued interest as of 
September 30, 2013 and 2012, are as follows: 
 
Account 2013 2012
Interest 1,743,627  $        1,767,613  $        
Principal 45                        135                      
Renewal, replacement, and project -                       10                        
Reserve 4,831,519            4,831,022            
Sinking fund account 1,004,994            959,911               

7,580,185  $        7,558,691  $        

 
 
Under the terms of the Series 1998 and Series 2009 Revenue Bond Ordinances, the bonds outstanding at 
September 30, 2013 and 2012 do not constitute an obligation of the City or a pledge of the faith and credit of the City. 
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Note 5. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

On July 21, 2005, the Authority entered into a loan agreement with the City of Miami.  The loan was obtained through 
Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) program to fund up to a maximum amount of $3,000,000 which was 
used for the construction of a parking garage facility.  Funds were disbursed on a reimbursement basis.  The loan 
bears no interest and is payable in 40 semi-annual installments of $75,000 starting December 1, 2005.  As of 
September 30, 2013, the Authority had drawn $3,000,000 of this loan and made repayments in the amount of 
$1,200,000. 
 

The remaining future annual principal payments are as follows: 
 

Required
Year ended September 30, Principal Payments
2014 150,000  $                
2015 150,000                    
2016 150,000                    
2017 150,000                    
2018 150,000                    
Thereafter 1,050,000                 

1,800,000  $             

 

Note 6. Pension Plan 

Plan description:  The Authority is the sponsor of the single-employer Department of Off-Street Parking Retirement 
Plan (the “Plan”), which is a defined-benefit pension plan that covers all of the Authority’s full-time employees, 
including employees employed by the facilities managed by the Authority.  The retirement board, which consists of 
the Authority’s Board members, controls and manages the administration of the Plan.  A financial institution serves as 
trustee and asset manager of the Plan, with the retirement board serving as an investment committee.  The Plan 
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  
That report may be obtained by writing to Department of Off-Street Parking of the City of Miami, Florida Retirement 
Plan, 40 N.W. 3rd Street, Suite 1103, Miami, Florida 33128. 
 
Upon retirement, the amount of monthly benefits under the Plan is determined as the average salary earned by the 
employee during the two highest salaried years out of the employee’s final five years of service multiplied by 3% for 
each of the first 10 years of service and by 2% for each year thereafter.  Benefits are payable in the form of annuity 
contracts or a lump-sum payment.  A terminated employee receives at least an amount equal in value to his or her 
contribution plus interest. 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Basis of Presentation.  The Plan’s financial statements are prepared 
using the full-accrual basis of accounting.  Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the 
contributions are due.  Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a 
formal commitment to provide the contributions.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of the Plan. 
 
Funding Policy.  The contribution requirements of participants and the Authority are established and amended by the 
retirement board.  Participants’ contributions, as required under the Plan, are 6.5% of base compensation. 
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Note 6. Pension Plan (Continued) 

The Authority is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 8.3% of annual covered 
payroll. 
 
Annual Pension Cost.  The Authority’s annual pension cost and net pension (asset) obligation (from) to the Plan for 
the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 
 

2013 2012
Annual required contribution 335,123  $           509,014  $           
Interest on net pension obligation -                       -                       

Annual pension cost 335,123               509,014               
Contribution made (335,123)              (509,014)              

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation -                       -                       

Net pension obligation, beginning of year -                       -                       
Net pension obligation, end of  year -$                     -$                     

 
 
The annual required contributions for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were determined as part of the 
October 1, 2012 and 2011 actuarial valuations using the aggregate actuarial cost method.  The aggregate actuarial 
cost method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities.  Therefore, information 
about funded status and funding progress is presented using the entry age actuarial cost method, and is intended to 
serve as a surrogate for the funded status and the funding progress of the plan.  The annual required contribution for 
the year ended September 30, 2011 was determined as part of the October 1, 2010 actuarial valuation using the 
frozen entry age actuarial cost method.  The actuarial assumptions included a 6.25% investment rate of return and a 
5.5% projected salary increase assumption.  Inflation is estimated at 3% annually.  Assets are valued using a five-
year moving average method based on market value.  The unfunded actuarial accrued liability, if any, is to be 
amortized by a series of level payments over a 10-year period on a closed basis. 
 
Three-year trend information is as follows: 
 

Annual Percentage of Net Pension
Year Ended Pension Cost APC Obligation
September 30, (APC) Contributed (Asset)
2011 460,602               100% -                       
2012 509,014               100% -                       
2013 335,123               100% -                       
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Note 6. Pension Plan (Continued) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress.  The funded status of the Plan as of October 1, 2012, the most recent 
actuarial valuation date, is as follows:  
 

UAAL as a
Actuarial Unfunded / Percentage

Actuarial Value of Actuarial (Funded) Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets  Accrued AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) Liability (AAL) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/2012 13,186,670  $       12,786,439  $        (402,231)  $      103.1% 4,046,036  $  (9.9%)

 
 
The required schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to 
the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 

Note 7. Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Plan Description.  Pursuant to Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, the Authority is required to permit participation in 
the health insurance program by retirees and their eligible dependents at a cost to the retiree that is no greater than 
the cost at which coverage is available for active employees.  The Authority has a single-employer Other Post-
Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plan with benefits based on age and date of employment.  The Authority provides 
postretirement medical and prescription drug coverage to pre-65 year old retirees and their eligible dependents 
through a fully insured medical plan.  Retirees pay 80% of the blended (active and retiree combined) equivalent 
premium rates for themselves and 100% of the blended equivalent premium rates for their eligible dependents.  The 
blended rates provide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial basis, the current and future claims are 
expected to result in higher costs to the plan on average than those of active employees.  The Authority performs a 
bi-annual actuarial review of the plan.  The last valuation was performed as of October 1, 2011 and no significant 
events have occurred since that date which would significantly change the assumptions used and resulting estimated 
OPEB liability.  
 
Funding Policy.  The Authority is financing the post employee benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.  For fiscal year 
2013, seven retirees received health care benefits.  The Authority provided required contributions of $10,235 toward 
the annual OPEB costs.  Retiree contributions totaled approximately $29,000. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation.  The Authority’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of 
GASB 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost 
each year to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  
The following table shows the components of the Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the amount actually contributed to 
the plan, and changes in the Authority’s net OPEB obligation for the retiree health plan for fiscal years 2013 and 
2012: 
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Note 7. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued) 

2013 2012
Annual required contribution 20,901  $             19,895  $             
Interest on net pension obligation 2,853                   2,432                   
Adjustment to annual required contribution (2,547)                  (2,172)                  

Annual OPEB Cost 21,207                 20,155                 
Contribution made (10,235)                (9,634)                  

Increase in net OPEB obligation 10,972                 10,521                 

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 71,324                 60,803                 
Net OPEB obligation, end of  year 82,296  $             71,324  $             

 
 
The three year trend information for the Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed, and the net OPEB obligation is as follows: 
 

Percentage of
Annual OPEB

Year Ended Annual Cost Net OPEB
September 30, OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2011 35,743  $             48% 60,803  $             
2012 20,155                 48% 71,324                 
2013 21,207                 48% 82,296                 

 
 
Funded Status and Funding Progress.  The funded status of the Plan as of October 1, 2011, the most recent 
actuarial valuation date, is as follows:  
 

UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets  Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
10/01/2011 -$                 222,740$          222,740$         0.00% 2,992,482$         7.44%

 
 
The required schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to 
the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
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Note 7. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued) 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the 
healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future.  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.  Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the Authority and 
plan members at that point.  The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 
 
The following assumptions were made: 
 
Eligibility for Retiree Benefits.  Employees are assumed to receive benefits upon retirement.  The eligibility 
requirements for retirement are as follows:  (1) For each participant hired prior to November 1, 2007, the earlier of (a) 
age 55 and 5 years of service or (b) 25 years of service and (2) for each participant hired on or after November 1, 
2007, age 60 and 5 years of service.  All participants are assumed to enroll in Medicare upon eligibility and 
discontinue the Retiree Medical Plan. 
 
Coverage Acceptance Rates.  Based on census data for the Authority’s active employees, 20% of retirees that are 
under the age of 65 accept coverage under the Authority’s plan, with only 5% of those retirees electing coverage for 
a spouse.  Additionally, 2% of retirees over the age of 65 will accept coverage, with only 1% of those retirees electing 
coverage for a spouse.  Coverage is assumed to lapse for 90% of covered retirees and their respective spouses at 
age 65. 
 
Starting Health Care Per Capita Costs.  Premium rates are the basis for the medical and prescription drugs starting 
per capita costs.  Starting costs for medical and prescription drugs were combined since the premium rate for these 
coverages are combined.  
 
Mortality.  Mortality tables are used to measure the probabilities of participants dying before and after retirement.  Life 
expectancies were based on mortality tables from the National Center for Health Statistics.  The RP-2000 Employee 
Mortality tables with Generational Mortality projections from year 2000 using projection scale AA was used. 
 
Turnover and Age at Retirement Rates.  Reasonable estimates were used partially based on the assumptions used 
for similar groups for GASB 45 valuations and the Authority’s experience. 
 
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate.  The expected rate of change in healthcare insurance premiums was based on the 
Authority’s historical experience, the actuary’s market-place knowledge and macro-economic theory.  The initial trend 
rate for premiums for the years 2012 and 2013 was determined to be (11%) and 6%, respectively.  In 2014, a trend 
rate of a 7.5% increase was assumed, with rate declining by 0.5% in subsequent years until reaching 5%. 
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Note 7. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued) 

Health Insurance Premiums.  2011 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as the basis for calculation of 
the present value of total benefits to be paid. 
 
Inflation Rate and Discount Rate.  Inflation is estimated at 3% annually.  The discount rate used to calculate present 
values and costs of the OPEB is estimated at 4% per annum, compounded annually.   
 
Amortization Period and Method.  The unfunded actuarial accrued liability, as calculated pursuant to the Individual 
Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method, is being amortized as a level percent of payroll over a 30 year period on a closed 
basis.  The assumed rate of payroll growth is 4%.  GASB Statement No. 45 requires that any such payroll growth 
assumption be based upon no increase in the number of active employees covered by the plan. 
 

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Contingencies.  Certain claims have been filed or are pending against the Authority.  It is management’s opinion 
based on the advice of counsel that all matters are without merit or are of such kind or involve such amounts, that 
losses, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Authority. 
 
Agreement with the City.  Pursuant to an agreement between the City and the Authority, the Authority agreed to 
transfer to the City, annually for a period of five years, commencing with fiscal year ended on September 30, 1999, 
an amount equal to the Authority’s excess revenue after paying operating expenses, debt service payments, meeting 
all renewal and replacement capital requirements and setting aside reserves for the working capital needs of the 
Authority as determined by the Board.  The agreement with the City expired on September 30, 2003.  Bond 
Ordinance 11693 (the “Ordinance”) authorized the issuance of the Series 1998 bonds.  The Ordinance allows the 
Authority, at its option, to transfer excess revenue as noted above, except that no minimum transfer requirements are 
stipulated. 
 
The excess revenue paid or payable to the City for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $6,500,000 
and $6,000,000, respectively. 
 

Note 9. Risk Management 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of losses related to tort; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters.  The Authority has obtained coverage from commercial 
insurance companies and has effectively managed risk through various employee education and prevention 
programs.  Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years. 
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Note 10. Operating Leases – Lessee 

The Authority leases several lots under fixed rental, as well as revenue-sharing agreements.  The Authority’s 
revenue-sharing leases entail rentals equal to a percentage of net or gross revenue generated by the leased facility.  
Rental expense pertaining to revenue-sharing leases is recognized in the period the related revenue is recognized 
and is included in property rentals and assessments in the Authority’s statements of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position.  Rent expense attributable to parking lots leased by the Authority is as follows for the years 
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012: 
 
Lease Type 2013 2012
Fixed rental 681,552  $           683,754  $           
Revenue sharing 1,837,357            1,643,866            

 
 
In December 2009, the Authority entered into a noncancelable operating lease agreement for a parking facility.  The 
lease has a term of five years, which expires on November 30, 2014.  Under the terms of the lease, the Authority is 
responsible for the operation, maintenance and repair of the parking facility. 
 
The future minimum lease payments for the aforementioned lease are as follows: 
 
Year Ending Minimum
September 30, Payments
2014 150,000  $           
2015 25,000                 

Total 175,000  $           
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Note 11. Operating Leases – Lessor 

The Authority leases approximately 11,000 square feet of office space located at one of its facilities to a non-profit 
entity.  The noncancelable lease has a term of 10 years, which expires July 2020.  Under the terms of the lease, the 
Authority granted a $200,000 tenant allowance to be used by the tenant to pay costs and expenses of relocation to 
and operating the facility.  This amount is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.  The 
unamortized balance at year end is $136,667.  The tenant is responsible for all other expenses associated with the 
leased space.   
 
The Authority has also leased (as lessor) the following spaces: 
 
Approximately 2,600 square feet of office space located at the Courthouse Center Garage to an engineering firm.  
The noncancelable lease has a remaining term of 10 years and expires July 2020.   
 
Approximately 1,400 square feet of office space located at the Courthouse Center Garage to a law firm.  The 
noncancelable lease has a term of 7 years and expires December 2018.   
 
Approximately 27,000 square feet of office space located at one of its facilities to a nonprofit entity.  The 
noncancelable lease has a term of 10 years and expires July 2025. 
 
The future minimum lease payments to be received for the aforementioned leases are as follows:   
 
Year Ending Minimum 
September 30, Receipts
2014 482,570  $           
2015 486,081               
2016 489,723               
2017 493,498               
2018 498,593               
Thereafter 2,018,104            

Total 4,468,569  $        
 

 
As of September 30, 2013, the leased assets had net book values as follows: 
 

Accumulated Net
Asset Cost Depreciation Book Value
Land 24,319  $             -$                     24,319  $             
Building 3,270,785            (1,445,516)           1,825,269            
          Total 3,295,104  $        (1,445,516)  $       1,849,588  $        
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress – Pension Plan

UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded / Percentage

Actuarial Value of Accrued (Funded) Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets  Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a)  (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/2010 11,902,697  $       11,914,196  $        11,499  $         99.9% 4,549,854  $  0.3%
10/01/2011 12,538,308           12,111,392            (426,916)          103.5% 4,434,556      (9.9%)
10/01/2012 13,186,670           12,786,439            (402,231)          103.1% 4,046,036      (9.9%)
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress – Other Post Employment Benefits

UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Percentage

Actuarial Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation of Assets  Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/2009 -$                 233,357$          233,357$         0.00% 4,954,747$         4.71%

10/01/2011 -                   222,740            222,740           0.00% 2,992,482           7.44%
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Schedule of Revenue and Expenses – Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Budget
Variance

2013 (Negative)
Budget Actual Positive

Operating revenues:
Parking lots 7,871,246  $         8,376,690  $         505,444  $            
On-street facilities 14,061,000           14,097,206           36,206                  
Off-street facilities 4,064,930             4,233,463             168,533                
Management and administrative fees 304,286                816,185                511,899                
Other  200,000                 267,018                67,018                  

Total operating revenues  26,501,462            27,790,562            1,289,100             

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits  5,912,259              6,031,491             (119,232)               
Maintenance, security and other  8,933,202              9,646,157             (712,955)               

Total operating expenses  14,845,461            15,677,648           (832,187)               
Operating income before depreciation
and amortization  11,656,001            12,112,914            456,913                

Depreciation and amortization  3,727,209              3,756,581             (29,372)                 
Operating income  7,928,792              8,356,333              427,541                

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment and other income (expense) 20,000                  (58,501)                 (78,501)                 
Interest expense (3,606,145)            (3,620,048)            (13,903)                 
Excess revenue distribution to City of Miami -                        (6,500,000)            (6,500,000)            

Net income (loss) 4,342,647  $         (1,822,216)  $        (6,164,863)  $        
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STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited) 
 
 
This part of the Authority’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary 
information says about the Authority’s overall financial health. 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Page 
  
Financial Trends  
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Authority’s  
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 46 
  
Debt Capacity  
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the  
Authority’s current levels of outstanding debt and the Authority’s ability to issue additional  
debt in the future. 50 
  
Operating Information  
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand  
how the information in the Authority’s financial report relates to the services the Authority  
provides and the activities it performs. 54 
  
Demographic and Economic Information  
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader  
understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial activities take place 58 
  
 
Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these exhibits is derived from the comprehensive annual 
financial report for the relevant year. 
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Historical Schedule of Revenue and Expenses (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007
Operating revenue:

Parking lots 4,163,874  $              4,944,587  $              6,161,685  $              7,160,050  $              
On-street facilities 5,121,009                  5,654,960                  6,199,456                  7,955,787                  
Off-street facilities 2,798,135                  2,964,015                  3,306,585                  3,329,317                  
Management and administrative fees 740,493                     710,008                     799,577                     1,024,673                  
Other 152,858                     151,668                     179,386                     213,989                     

Total operating revenue 12,976,369                14,425,238                16,646,689                19,683,816                

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 5,397,084                  5,704,640                  6,093,551                  6,857,619                  
Repairs and maintenance 673,629                     669,314                     1,006,771                  1,024,644                  
Security 599,975                     639,043                     652,880                     716,600                     
Utilities 401,528                     440,923                     545,925                     614,301                     
Other 2,599,978                  2,995,700                  3,379,984                  4,398,922                  

Total operating expenses 9,672,194                  10,449,620                11,679,111                13,612,086                
Operating income before
depreciation and amortization 3,304,175                  3,975,618                  4,967,578                  6,071,730                  

Depreciation and amortization (1,662,884)                 (1,699,218)                 (2,362,431)                 (2,439,843)                 
Operating income 1,641,291                  2,276,400                  2,605,147                  3,631,887                  

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 169,668                     148,716                     1,209,820                  1,976,105                  
Net increase (decrease) in fair value 

of investment – current (110,589)                    (44,379)                      1,215                         504                            
Net increase (decrease) in fair value

of investment – restricted -                             -                             -                             -                             
Interest expense (517,988)                    (490,587)                    (1,503,411)                 (2,195,760)                 

Swap termination -                             -                             -                             -                             
Other (1) -                             -                             -                             -                             
Gains (losses) on disposals of properties

and equipment -                             14,192                       1,019,920                  28,900                       
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) (458,909)                    (372,058)                    727,544                     (190,251)                    
Net income before payments
to primary government
and capital contributions 1,182,382                  1,904,342                  3,332,691                  3,441,636                  

Payments to primary government (1,531,868)                 (1,887,598)                 (2,000,670)                 (2,375,610)                 
Capital contributions (2) 150,000                     879,113                     167,515                     -                             

Net income (loss) (199,486)  $                895,857  $                 1,499,536  $              1,066,026  $              

Capital outlay 1,852,238  $              7,152,156  $              9,051,927  $              3,682,957  $              

(1)  Other nonoperating expenses relates to trade vendor discounts taken

(2) Results for 2004 represents a capital contribution for the City to pay certain amenities adjacent to the Watson Island lot. 
  Results for 2005 represent a capital contribution from the City of Miami to pay for the acquisition of a parcel of land.  Results 

      for 2006 represent a capital contribution from the City for the construction of surface lots.
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

7,545,972  $              7,764,915  $              7,598,482  $              7,681,914  $              7,804,016  $              8,376,690  $              
9,108,790                  10,241,641                12,085,091                12,975,341                13,649,453                14,097,206                
2,858,842                  2,764,712                  2,850,106                  3,571,248                  3,956,386                  4,233,463                  
1,474,552                  1,290,374                  1,159,801                  1,085,980                  919,904                     816,185                     

416,448                     317,524                     223,008                     205,192                     183,821                     267,018                     
21,404,604                22,379,166                23,916,488                25,519,675                26,513,580                27,790,562                

7,649,924                  7,928,286                  7,384,903                  6,483,947                  5,942,992                  6,031,491                  
1,453,712                  1,155,117                  987,068                     1,089,483                  1,269,764                  1,312,713                  

852,625                     1,026,145                  1,224,329                  833,283                     756,810                     808,592                     
582,405                     649,849                     545,378                     695,179                     680,615                     675,246                     

5,046,787                  5,311,256                  5,425,392                  5,449,450                  6,094,548                  6,849,606                  
15,585,453                16,070,653                15,567,070                14,551,342                14,744,729                15,677,648                

5,819,151                  6,308,513                  8,349,418                  10,968,333                11,768,851                12,112,914                

(2,500,475)                 (2,545,454)                 (3,429,841)                 (3,524,124)                 (3,570,487)                 (3,756,581)                 
3,318,676                  3,763,059                  4,919,577                  7,444,209                  8,198,364                  8,356,333                  

1,312,945                  410,513                     97,620                       373                            25,992                       13,002                       

-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

-                             -                             12,369                       40,965                       53,397                       (71,714)                      
(1,551,110)                 (1,024,037)                 (3,232,379)                 (3,699,643)                 (3,653,961)                 (3,620,048)                 

-                             -                             (5,835,611)                 
610                            519                            3,833                         5                                -                             211                            

(54,772)                      -                             251,536                     (8,250)                        2,479,520                  -                             

(292,327)                    (613,005)                    (8,702,632)                 (3,666,550)                 (1,095,052)                 (3,678,549)                 

3,026,349                  3,150,054                  (3,783,055)                 3,777,659                  7,103,312                  4,677,784                  

(1,000,000)                 (2,010,000)                 (7,500,000)                 (5,712,500)                 (6,000,000)                 (6,500,000)                 
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

2,026,349  $              1,140,054  $              (11,283,055)  $           (1,934,841)  $             1,103,312  $              (1,822,216)  $             

12,195,133  $            28,294,361  $            6,705,430  $              1,573,399  $              2,176,701  $              1,007,265  $              

(Continued)  
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Historical Schedule of Revenue and Expenses (Unaudited) (Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Net Position by Component (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Business Activity

Net investment in capital

assets 18,449,879  $   23,654,194  $   23,365,367  $   21,259,598  $   23,328,486  $   
Restricted for capital

projects 886,830            926,518            992,580            300,891            358,323            
Restricted for debt service -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Unrestricted 3,020,943         (1,327,203)        395,098            4,258,582         4,158,611         
Total business

activity net position 22,357,652  $   23,253,509  $   24,753,045  $   25,819,071  $   27,845,420  $   

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Business Activity

Net investment in capital

assets 27,191,412  $   14,172,294  $   11,734,072  $   8,688,089  $     6,888,348  $     
Restricted for capital

projects 408,048            -                    -                    -                    
Restricted for debt service -                    1,275,023         910,363            960,297            991,400            

Unrestricted 1,386,014         2,255,102         3,123,143         7,222,504         7,168,926         
Total business
activity net position 28,985,474  $   17,702,419  $   15,767,578  $   16,870,890  $   15,048,674  $   
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Historical Schedule of Debt Service Coverage (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007

Income available for debt service (a) 3,363,254  $       4,079,956  $       6,177,398  $       8,047,837  $       

Debt service:
Interest on bonds 511,699              484,298              1,475,484           2,140,610           
Amortization of bond issue cost 6,289                  6,289                  27,927                55,151                

Total interest expense 517,988  $          490,587  $          1,503,411  $       2,195,761  $       

Principal (b) 685,000  $          710,000  $          740,000  $          770,000  $          
Debt service on bonds (c) 1,202,988           1,200,587           2,243,411           2,965,761           
Debt service coverage ratio (d) 2.80                    3.40                    2.75                    2.71                    

(a) Operating income before depreciation and amortization plus investment income.

(b) Represents the principal payment due on October 1 subsequent to the end of the fiscal year.
(c) Interest on bonds plus principal (excludes payments to refund bonds in any given year).
(d) Income available for debt service divided by debt service on bonds.
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

7,132,096  $       6,719,026  $       8,459,407  $       11,028,262  $     11,848,240  $     12,054,202  $     

1,496,819           953,362              3,139,542           3,580,572           3,534,890           3,500,978           
54,291                70,675                92,837                119,071              119,071              119,070              

1,551,110  $       1,024,037  $       3,232,379  $       3,699,643  $       3,653,961  $       3,620,048  $       

800,000  $          835,000  $          875,000  $          910,000  $          960,000  $          1,005,000  $       
2,351,110           1,859,037           4,107,379           4,609,643           4,613,960           4,625,048           

3.03                    3.61                    2.06                    2.39                    2.57                    2.61                    
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Parking System Parking System Parking System Parking System
Ended Revenue Refunding Bonds Revenue Refunding Bonds Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
September 30, Series 2009 Series 2008 Series 2006 Series 1998

2004 -$                                       -$                                       -$                        10,514,430  $         
2005 -                                         -                                         -                          9,842,566               
2006 -                                         -                                         40,655,000             9,145,703               
2007 -                                         -                                         40,655,000             8,397,291               
2008 -                                         40,875,329                            -                          7,618,881               
2009 -                                         40,878,385                            -                          6,810,469               
2010 64,348,877                            -                                         -                          5,967,058               
2011 64,426,107                            -                                         -                          5,083,646               
2012 64,503,338                            -                                         -                          4,165,235               
2013 64,580,568                            -                                         -                          3,196,824               

Note:  Details regarding the Authority's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial
            statements.
(1) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 64 for personal income
      and population data.  
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Total 
Outstanding

Debt to Total Debt
Loans Personal Per

Payable Total Income (1) Capita (1)

-$                      10,514,430  $    0.01% 29.01                
964,868                10,807,434        0.01% 29.82                

2,850,000             52,650,703        0.06% 145.26              
2,700,000             51,752,291        0.06% 142.78              
2,550,000             51,044,210        0.06% 140.82              
2,400,000             50,088,854        0.06% 138.19              
2,250,000             72,565,935        0.08% 181.66              
2,100,000             71,609,753        0.07% 179.27              
1,950,000             70,618,573        0.07% 176.79              
1,800,000             69,577,392        N/A 174.18              
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Total Number of Parking Spaces (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007

DOSP parking garages (a) 2,880                  2,880                  3,204                  3,225                  
Managed parking garages (b) 1,352                  1,352                  1,352                  8,319                  
Parking lots (c) 5,747                  6,047                  7,594                  11,664                
On-street parking meters and PAD (d) 7,479                  7,547                  8,058                  8,443                  

Total number of spaces 17,458                17,826                20,208                31,651                

(a) Municipal Garage No. 1 was demolished during 2008 to make way for the construction of the 
      Courthouse Center Garage, which came on line in January 2010.

(b)  The management of the Public Health Trust garages began in February 2007 (6,429 spaces).
      The management of the Marlins garages began in January 2012 (4,805 spaces).

(c) The management of the Public Health Trust lots began in February 2007 (746 spaces).
      The management of the Flagler Development Company lots by the Authority began in December 
      2006 (1,206 spaces).  The Orange Bowl lot was removed during Fiscal Year 2010 (3,895 spaces).
      The management of the Marlins lots began in January 2012 (827 spaces).

(d) During fiscal year 2004 through 2010, the Authority has continually replaced on street meters with PAD
      (pay and display) multispace meters.
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

2,646                  2,717                  3,518                  3,554                  3,554                  3,554                  
8,296                  8,319                  8,299                  7,799                  12,604                12,607                

11,838                11,681                6,259                  6,259                  9,183                  9,196                  
9,147                  9,889                  10,376                10,374                10,300                10,393                

31,927                32,606                28,452                27,986                35,641                35,750                
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Parking Revenue Per Space (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007
Parking revenue per space

DOSP parking garages (a) 971.58  $            1,029.17  $         1,032.02  $         1,032.35  $         
Parking lots 724.53                817.69                811.39                655.80                
On-street parking meters  684.73                749.30                769.35                942.29                
Average per space 750.22                823.33                830.91                816.66                

(a) Does not include managed garages.
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

1,037.32$           1,017.49$           810.15$              1,004.85$           1,113.22$           1,191.18$           
637.44                664.75                1,378.03             1,393.42             1,009.45             1,089.86             
995.82                1,035.66             1,164.72             1,250.76             1,324.81             1,356.41             
820.93                855.23                1,161.05             1,246.26             1,177.96             1,234.57             
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Miami Parking Authority Employees by Function (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2004 2005 2006 2007
Number of employees:

Administrative staff 6                         6                         7                         3                         
Control room -                      -                      -                      -                      
Customer service 4                         8                         8                         8                         
Enforcement 21                       23                       26                       21                       
Finance 9                         12                       11                       11                       
Gusman 5                         6                         6                         7                         
Human Resource 3                         3                         3                         3                         
Information Technology 2                         3                         3                         3                         
Maintenance 11                       21                       26                       21                       
Marlins -                      -                      -                      -                      
Meter collection 6                         8                         7                         6                         
Meter maintenance 18                       16                       14                       17                       
Off-street parking 37                       34                       45                       45                       
On-street parking 10                       12                       10                       5                         
Planning & development 1                         1                         2                         2                         
Procurement 1                         1                         2                         2                         
Public Health Trust -                      -                      -                      59                       
Senior management 14                       4                         5                         4                         

Total number of employees 148                     158                     175                     217                     

Source:  Department of Off-Street Parking, Human Resources Department  
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

4                         3                         3                         3                         4                         4                         
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      9                         
8                         6                         5                         3                         8                         5                         

30                       27                       23                       23                       25                       23                       
12                       10                       11                       11                       11                       12                       

7                         6                         6                         6                         -                      -
3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         
3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         

24                       22                       13                       10                       10                       13                       
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      5                         
6                         5                         5                         5                         9                         5                         

18                       15                       16                       15                       13                       19                       
43                       42                       41                       27                       21                       20                       

5                         5                         4                         3                         3                         2                         
2                         2                         1                         1                         1                         1                         
2                         2                         2                         2                         1                         1                         

59                       48                       41                       41                       45                       36                       
4                         4                         4                         4                         5                         5                         

230                     203                     181                     160                     162                     166                     
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Miami-Dade County, Florida Demographic Data (Unaudited)
Growth Factors
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unincorporated
City of Miami Miami-Dade

Miami-Dade Miami-Dade Value of County Value Miami-Dade
County Motor County Sales Building of Building County Estimated

Vehicle Tax Collections  (2) Permits (3) Permits (1) Nonagricultural
Year Registration (1) (000s) (000s) (000s) Employment (4)

2004 2,032,721             1,949,507  $           820,646  $            1,341,453  $         1,013,900  $         
2005 2,094,012             2,151,475               1,751,348             1,305,492             1,046,500             
2006 2,182,782             2,364,163               2,141,487             1,227,709             1,057,700             
2007 2,409,216             2,421,210               1,069,800             610,999                1,061,300             
2008 2,304,292             2,315,601               1,675,507             636,849                1,045,500             
2009 2,360,727             2,087,994               611,348                319,170                1,010,200             
2010 2,362,519             2,062,154               854,815                313,695                975,300                
2011 2,399,049             2,269,140               471,995                236,481                994,100                
2012 2,406,656             2,451,301               1,257,322             317,680                1,011,500             
2013 2,465,555             2,622,920               607,253                390,976                1,035,500             

Sources:    
(1) Miami-Dade County Finance Department
(2) State of Florida Department of Revenue
(3) City of Miami Finance Department
(4) Florida Agency for Workforce Innovation, Labor Market Statistics, CES Program
     (in cooperation with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics)
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Miami-Dade County, Florida Demographic Data (Unaudited)

September September September September
2004 % 2005 % 2006 % 2007 %

Goods:
Producing sector:

Contract construction 44,000          4.34               43,400          4.15               48,300          4.57          54,400         5.12         
Manufacturing 50,500          4.98               49,600          4.74               46,900          4.43          46,900         4.42         
Mining 400               0.04               400               0.03               600               0.06          400              0.03         

Total goods producing 94,900          9.36               93,400          8.92               95,800          9.06          101,700       9.57         

Services sector:
Transportation, communications

and utilities 90,500          8.93               89,700          8.57               85,000          8.04          82,500         7.77         
Wholesale trade 72,300          7.13               75,100          7.18               74,200          7.01          76,400         7.20         
Retail trade 116,800        11.52             115,800        11.07             120,200        11.36        126,000       11.87       
Finance, insurance and real estate 69,500          6.85               69,900          6.68               74,900          7.08          76,400         7.20         
Services 417,800        41.21             448,200        42.83             452,900        42.82        442,500       41.69       
Government 152,100        15.00             154,400        14.75             154,700        14.63        155,800       14.70       

Total services 919,000        90.64             953,100        91.08             961,900        90.94        959,600       90.43       
Total 1,013,900     100.00           1,046,500     100.00           1,057,700     100.00      1,061,300    100.00     

65 Years and Older
% Number % Total

57.0 1,625,598      15.7 1,625,598      
59.1 1,625,598      15.0 1,770,744      
59.0 1,625,598      14.0 1,937,094      
58.7 1,625,598      12.4 2,100,000      
59.3 1,625,598      12.1 2,260,000      

27.5 1,625,598      13.4 2,402,105      

Source:  Florida Agency for Workforce Innovation, Labor Market Statistics, CES Program
                (in cooperation with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics)
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September September September September September September
2008 % 2009 % 2010 % 2011 % 2012 % 2013 %

45,400         4.34        39,100         4.34         33,100         3.39        31,100         3.13        27,700          2.74        30,100          2.91              
45,300         4.33        41,400         4.33         34,600         3.55        33,900         3.41        34,800          3.44        36,500          3.52              

500              0.05        400              0.05         300              0.03        300              0.03        400               0.04        400               0.04              
91,200         8.72        80,900         8.72         68,000         6.97        65,300         6.57        62,900          6.22        67,000          6.47              

61,500         5.88        59,000         5.88         57,000         5.84        58,800         5.91        61,500          6.08        61,700          5.96              
75,700         7.24        74,100         7.24         69,400         7.12        68,900         6.93        68,900          6.81        74,800          7.22              

123,100       11.77      120,300       11.77       119,500       12.25      125,100       12.58      134,200        13.27      137,400        13.27            
73,200         7.00        70,800         7.00         77,500         7.95        78,100         7.86        80,200          7.93        91,000          8.79              

462,200       44.22      453,300       44.22       432,900       44.39      446,300       44.90      461,500        45.62      468,900        45.29            
158,600       15.17      151,800       15.17       151,000       15.48      151,600       15.25      142,300        14.07      134,700        13.00            
954,300       91.28      929,300       91.28       907,300       93.03      928,800       93.43      948,600        93.78      968,500        93.53            

1,045,500    100.00    1,010,200    100.00     975,300       100.00    994,100       100.00    1,011,500     100.00    1,035,500     100.00          
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Demographic and Economic Statistics (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Miami-Dade County
Personal
Income Miami-Dade County

(Amounts Per Capita
City of Miami Expressed in Personal Median School Unemployment

Year Population (1) Thousands (2) Income (2) Age (1) Enrollment (3) Rate (4)

2004 362,470           71,914,388  $            29,076  $                   37                    369,578           5.7%
2005 362,470           77,372,602                31,347                       37                    361,550           4.7%
2006 362,470           85,191,090                33,712                       37                    365,784           3.4%
2007 362,470           88,148,296                36,071                       38                    346,629           3.9%
2008 362,470           91,603,543                35,887                       38                    344,806           6.1%
2009 362,470           90,915,774                36,357                       38                    345,570           11.1%
2010 399,457           92,227,399                36,846                       38                    345,458           11.1%
2011 399,457           96,657,710                37,834                       38                    347,133           11.5%
2012 399,457           100,688,604              38,860                       38                    345,635           8.7%
2013 399,457           N/A N/A 38                    347,493           8.3%

Sources:
(1)  United States Census Bureau
(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce
(3)  Miami-Dade County School Board Budget Office
(4)  Florida Agency for Workplace Innovation, Office of Workforce Information Services,
       Labor Market Statistics
N/A Information not available
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Department of Off-Street Parking
of the City of Miami, Florida
(A Component Unit of the City of Miami, Florida)

Principal Employers (Unaudited)
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Percentage of Percentage of

Total County Total County

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Miami-Dade County Public Schools 33,477            1 3.23% 45,886            1 4.53%

Miami-Dade County  25,502            2 2.46% 32,000            2 3.16%

U.S. Federal Government 19,600            3 1.89% 20,100            3 1.98%

State of Florida 18,300            4 1.77% 18,900            4 1.86%

Baptist Health South Florida 13,376            5 1.29% 9,000              7 0.89%

University of Miami 12,720            6 1.23% 9,079              6 0.90%

American Airlines 9,000              7 0.87% 9,000              8 0.89%

Public Health Trust / Jackson Memorial

     Hospital 8,208              8 0.79% 11,700            5 1.15%

Publix Supermarkets 4,604              9 0.44% -                  -                  0.00%

Carnival Cruise Lines 3,500              10 0.34% -                  -                  0.00%

Precision Response Corporation -                  -                  0.00% 6,000              9 0.59%

United Parcel Service -                  -                  0.00% 5,000              10 0.49%
148,287          14.31% 166,665          16.44%

Source:  The Beacon Council / U.S. Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics

20042013
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40 NW 3rd Street
Miami, Florida 33128

305-373-6789
miamiparking.com




